
BOARD MEETING 
 

JEFFERSON COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
October 19, 2017 

 
                         

 

 
                         
 
 
 



APPROVAL OF AGENDA 



BOARD MEETING AGENDA 
Jefferson County Public Library Board of Trustees 

 

 

ITEM# / ACTION  Thursday, October 19, 2017 – COLUMBINE LIBRARY MEETING ROOM 

 

1.  Call to order & attendance (4.5.8) 

2.  Pledge of Allegiance 

3. Action  Approve Agenda 

Call for motion and second 

 

4.    Action  Approval of Minutes  

Call for motion and second 

 September 14, 2017 Study Session Minutes 

 September 21, 2017 Joint & Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

 

5.  Public Comment 

 

6.  Information   Foundation Report – Jo Schantz 

 

7. Operational 

Updates 

      Action as Needed 

 Executive Director Update 

 

 Finance Department – Gloria Overholt, Interim Director of Budget & Finance 

 Financial Reports 

 

 Public Services Department 

 Edgewater Update – Paul Wember 

 Action Item:  Edgewater General Contractor Contract Authorization 

 

 Information Technology Department 

 Action Item:  Bibliotheca Contract Authorization – Pat Klein 

 

 Facilities Department 

 Action Item:  Evergreen HVAC Rebuild Contract Authorization 

 

8.  Action as Needed  Consent Agenda (4.3.4) 

 2018 Board Meeting Schedule – Board Consensus 

 

9.  Emerging Issues 

Action as Needed 

 

 

10.    Action as Needed  Ends 

 No items 

 

11.  Action as Needed  Governing Policies: Management Limitations (Monitoring Reports) 

 No items 

 



BOARD MEETING AGENDA 
Jefferson County Public Library Board of Trustees 

 

 

12.  Suggest Agenda 

Items 

BOARD SCHEDULE – NEXT MEETINGS 

 November 9 – Study Session – 5:30 pm – Administration Conference Room 

 November 16 – Board Meeting – 5:30 pm – Lakewood Library Meeting Room 

 December 14 – Board Meeting – 5:30 pm – Lakewood Library Meeting Room 

 

13.  Discussion  Board Questions or Comments Related to Items on the Meeting Agenda 

 

14.  Discussion  Evaluate Board Meeting (4.1.9) 

 

15.  Information 

 

   

Announcements/General Information Sharing 

 Report of the Chair – Correspondence, Other 

 Other Announcements 

 

16. Adjournment 

 

 

 



APPROVAL OF MINUTES  



 

 

Page 1 of 6 
 

Jefferson County Public Library Board of Trustees  

Study Session 

September 14, 2017 – 5:30 p.m. 

Administration Conference Room 

 

TOPICS:  

 Columbine Leased Space Amendment Authorization 

 LED Exterior Lighting Upgrade Information 

 NV5 Amendment Information  

 Midwest Tape Information  

 Facility Master Plan Information  

 Library‐2‐You Van 

 Naming Agreement 

 
Call to Order 

Julia Hill‐Nichols, Chair, called the Study Session to order at 5:30 p.m. 

 

Other Trustees present: Charles Naumer (Vice‐Chair), Kim Johnson (Secretary), John 

Bodnar and Deborah Deal. 

 

Trustees not present: Brian DeLaet  

 

Staff present: Pam Nissler, Executive Director; Donna Walker, Director of Public 

Services; Rebecca Winning, Director of Communications; Gloria Overholt, Interim 

Director of Budget & Finance; Steve Chestnut, Director of Facilities & Construction 

Projects; Julianne Rist, Director of Public Services; Pat Klein, Director of Information 

Technology; and Amber Fisher, Executive Assistant, Office of the Executive Director. 

 

Columbine Leased Space Amendment Authorization 

Steve Chestnut, Director of Facilities and Construction Projects provided information to 

the Board.  The original schedule anticipated completion of Columbine in September. 

In March of this year, the Board authorized the Library to enter into a lease agreement 

at Bowles Crossing for a temporary library space while Columbine was under 

construction.  That lease agreement will terminate on September 30, 2017.  Due to 

delays, the Library is asking to extend that lease agreement by an additional 30 days at 

a cost of $2,000.  This will allow sufficient time for completion of the Columbine Library 

and removal of Library owned equipment/books from the leased space. 

 

 



 

 

Page 2 of 6 
 

MOTION:  Charles Naumer moved that the Library Board of Trustees authorize 

the Executive Director to extend the lease of Bowles Crossing for an additional 

month, terminating the last day of October 2017, for an additional cost of $2000. 

Seconded by Kim Johnson the motion passed by unanimous vote of all Trustees 

present. 

 

LED Exterior Lighting Upgrade Information 

Steve Chestnut, Director of Facilities and Construction Projects, addressed the Board. 

The LED exterior lighting project is a part of the Library’s capital maintenance projects 

and the last piece of the energy efficiency project. The Library has decided to amend the 

RFP and does not anticipate having the responses and contract available for the Board 

meeting next week.  In response to a question, Steve Chestnut advised the Board that 

the budget remains the same at $35,000 and if the responses go over that amount, the 

Library will adjust the project to address the most critical libraries and revisit the 

remainder of the libraries next year. 

 

NV5 Amendment Information  

Steve Chestnut, Director of Facilities and Construction Project provided an update to 

the Board regarding the NV5 contract. JCPL entered into a 14‐month contract with NV5, 

which will be exceeded by two months.  NV5’s normal fee is $7,600 per month.  NV5 

has agreed to extend the contract for two months at $5,000 per month.   

 

In response to questions, the Board was advised that: 

 NV5 continued to manage the project during the delay in receiving materials and 

supplies.  NV5 also attended the planning and zoning commission meetings.  

There was no time when NV5 was not working. 

 NV5’s continuing services for the project include managing the receipt and 

installation of furniture, fixtures and equipment, sorter and shelving installation 

and activities associated with moving back into the renovated facility. 

 The Library will provide a copy of the NV5 contract to the Board to confirm the 

initial 14 month term of the contract. 

 The Library will provide an update to the Board on the contingency budget for 

the project. 

 Not bringing this extension to the Board’s attention earlier was an oversight and 

the Library extended apologies to the Board. 

 The contract extension funds will come from the Library’s contingency fund 

which is intended to fund unanticipated project expenses that are needed to 

complete the project and that were not expected to be needed in the NV5 or 

Fransen Pittman contingency funds. 

 



 

 

Page 3 of 6 
 

 

 

Midwest Tape Information  

Julianne Rist, Director of Public Services introduced the topic and provided background 

information.  In 2016, the library entered into an RFP process to ensure we were 

receiving the best value for materials and processing, as well as streamlining our 

workflow by using a primary vendor for audiovisual material. In October 2016, the 

Board of Trustees authorized Jefferson County Public Library to make MidWest Tape 

our primary vendor for media, DVDs, CDs and Audiobooks.  The approved contract 

allows us to renew it annually for four additional years. The original contract was 

written with a not to exceed amount of $2,000,000. In 2017 with our normal 

expenditures for media and the addition of DVDs to refresh the Columbine collection, 

we will not exceed this $2,000,000 figure.  This contract is now up for our first annual 

renewal. 

 

For the 2018 budget year, there will be some changes to the budget, which makes the 

not to exceed amount insufficient.  The collection budget will be increased in 2018 to 

support moving towards the strategic goal of reaching the 50th percentile for items per 

capita.  We will also be purchasing an opening day collection for the new Edgewater 

library that requires more material.  The combination of these two factors mean we will 

need increase the dollar limit in the contract in order to purchase the number of items 

needed in 2018.  With increases to the collection budget planned for the next five years, 

and additional opening day collections need for other remodel project we foresee 

having to raise this limit again within the terms of the contract. 

The Library is recommending that the not to exceed amount be increased to $3,000,000 

for 2018 and that the remaining three annual renewals be increased as long as the 

amounts will be supported by the books and materials budget approved by the Board.   

 

In response to questions, the Board was advised that: 

 The Library will provide the percentage of the budget allocated for Edgewater to 

the Board. 

 The current renewal is for 2018. 

 The Library will go out for competitive bids when the current contract and 

renewals are completed. 

 The Library is investigating better pricing within the current renewals based on 

the anticipated increase in the budget amount including options for selections 

and combining items for discounts.   

 The Library will investigate better pricing options in the 2018 RFP when the 

Baker & Taylor contract is completed. 



 

 

Page 4 of 6 
 

 The Library looks for contracts with renewal options in part because of the high 

cost of implementing new contracts related to the amount of time and resources 

for staff and the vendor to create a system to process material and create records 

that will work with the Library’s computer software (ILS system). 

 

Facility Master Plan Information  

Julianne Rist, Director of Public Services provided an update to the Board.  The 2017 

strategic plan include the Initiative to develop a long‐range facilities plan and a Request 

for Proposal was issues. The Library completed interviews with two firms and is in the 

process of completing reference checks.  Next week the Library will be adjusting some 

items on the scope of work; removing some things the Library has already completed 

and expanding an item.  The Library will send out more information on the winning 

firm prior to the Board meeting next week. 

 

The Chair expressed appreciation to the staff for their impressive work on the process 

and noted that the RFP was exceptionally well done. 
 

Library‐2‐You Van 

Julianne Rist, Director of Public Services, addressed the Board.  This year the 

Bookmobile has been showing its wear and age.  The library has been working with 

County Fleet in keeping the vehicle on the road and has replaced two major parts (the 

generator and the transfer case).   So far this year the bookmobile has been out of service 

for 41 days.  During this time in order to continue to provide library service to the 

scheduled stops, the library rented a Sprinter van to transport and check out materials 

at a cost of $2,730.39.   The 2018 budget includes purchasing a van for Library 2 You as 

part of their masterplan.  Due to the high number of days the bookmobile has been out 

of service and the rental costs, the library would like to move up the purchase of the 

van so that we have it as both the planned outreach lobby stop service and as a backup 

for when the bookmobile is in the shop.  There is a window of opportunity, in 

partnership with County Fleet, to move up the purchase.  The two criteria have been 

met; the Library has the funds in contingency and County Fleet has the capacity to 

implement the purchase by the deadline of December 15.  Specifications for the vehicle 

were developed and County Fleet went out to bid with a closing date of September 18.   

If a qualified response is received, the Library will ask the Board to authorize the 

purchase at the September 21, 2017 Library Board meeting.  If a qualified response is not 

received, the Library/County Fleet will reissue the specifications in January 2018.  

 

In response to questions, the Board was advised that: 

 There are several senior stops where it is difficult for some of the patrons to come 

into the vehicle so staff take materials into the lobby.  Delivering services from 



 

 

Page 5 of 6 
 

lobbies has increased circulation and the Library would like to add more lobby 

stops to the service. 

 The Library does have plans to replace the bookmobile and a sinking fund has 

been established and is included in the long‐range capital plan.  

 The Library is considering moving up the purchase of a new bookmobile, 

however, it does take approximately nine months to build a bookmobile. 

 There are differences between the services the bookmobile can provide and the 

services a sprinter van can provide.  Sprinter vans cannot hold as much as the 

bookmobile and cannot serve the needs of all the stops.  Some of the stops do not 

have lobbies so the bookmobile better serves those stops.    

 

Naming Agreements 

Rebecca Winning, Director of Communications, introduced the topic.  The official 

launch of the naming program for Columbine will launch between this study session 

and the September Board meeting.  People have come forward including the Buell 

Foundation for a portion of the children’s discovery center and Julia Hill‐Nichols for the 

art wall.  The Library will be requesting authorization for those naming agreements at 

the September Board meeting.  

 

In response to questions, the Board was advised that: 

 There are guidelines and a menu of naming opportunities with funding 

amounts.  There were no special considerations or discounts. 

 Everything is already paid for and the funds from the naming program are used 

to offset the costs.   

 The Library pays for the costs of the signage.  These costs are not significant to 

the Library. 

 All of the money goes through the Foundation and comes back to the Library.  

The funds are not held by the Foundation and donated later for something else. 

 The Foundation is a 501c3, which provides tax benefits to the donors. 

 There are naming opportunities for the Golden Library.  The Library recently 

received a bench to honor a dog that served in the PAWs reading program. 

 There is a planning meeting scheduled next week for the outdoor learning 

environment at Standley Lake. 

 

ANNOUNCEMENTS AND INFORMATION SHARING 

The Chair reminded the Board of the September 28, 2017 quarterly meeting with the 

Board of County Commissioners.  A request for agenda items was sent to the 

Commissioners. 

 

 



 

 

Page 6 of 6 
 

ADJOURNMENT 

The study session was adjourned at 6:15 p.m.  

 

 

 

 

                          Kim Johnson, Secretary 
 
 



 

1 of 9 

Minutes of the Joint Meeting of the 

JEFFERSON COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES and THE JEFFERSON 

COUNTY LIBRARY FOUNDATION BOARD and the Regular Meeting of the JEFFERSON 

COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

September 21, 2017 

 

CALL TO ORDER – JOINT MEETING 

The joint meeting of the Jefferson County Public Library Board of Trustees and the Jefferson 

County Library Foundation Board was held in the Belmar Library meeting room on 

September 21, 2017.  Library Board of Trustees Chair, Julia Hill‐Nichols called the joint 

meeting to order at 4:48 p.m.  Other Trustees present; Charles Naumer (Vice‐Chair), Kim 

Johnson (Secretary), John Bodnar, Brian DeLaet and Deborah Deal. 

 

Trustees not present:  All Trustees were present. 

 

Jefferson County Library Foundation Board members and staff present:  Tami Bandimere‐

Shrader (President); Jo Schantz (Foundation Executive Director); Jamie Tafoya (Secretary); 

Ana Rojas‐Artica (Treasurer); Sally Reed, TJ Bowen; Neal Browne; Ron Marquez; Tim 

Rogers; and Tiffany Fulbright. 

 

Library Staff present:  Pam Nissler, Executive Director; Donna Walker, Director of Public 

Services; Gloria Overholt, Interim Director of Budget & Finance; Julianne Rist, Director of 

Public Services; Sandie Coutts, Director of Employee Relations & Development; Pat Klein, 

Director of Information Technology; Rebecca Winning, Director of Communications; Steve 

Chestnut, Director of Facilities & Construction Projects; and Amber Fisher, Executive 

Assistant, Office of the Executive Director. 

 

Guests:  Jessica Emmett, Actualize Marketing 

 

Welcome and Introduction 

The meeting opened with Julia Hill‐Nichols, Library Board Chair, initiating introductions of 

the Library Trustees and Foundation Board members.    

 

Brand Presentation 

Rebecca Winning, Director of Communications addressed the Boards and introduced 

Jessica Emmett with Actualize Marketing, who presented information on the Library’s 

brand codification project. The project included the development of a brand platform that 

provides the best foundation for telling a compelling story about JCPL today and well into 

the future.  Actualize performed a thorough review of branding background materials, 

conducted in‐depth interview with the strategic marketing team, analyzed the online staff 

survey, completed industry research and feedback exercises with the combined 



 

2 of 9 

management team, public services management team and developed a team of brand 

ambassadors.  All this information provided a keen understanding of why JCPL matters to 

its patrons and communities. Actualize Marketing closely examined what JCPL does best, 

what patrons want the most and what competitors are overlooking to help JCPL develop a 

brand platform that: 

 

 Speaks to the heritage, purpose, and permanence of libraries in our communities. 

 Captures JCPL’s values and the unwavering commitment of our staff. 

 Gives us a platform to show patrons everything they can be and do with the 

resources  

available to them at JCPL 

 

The positioning statement created to tell the story of JCPL: Always Be. Jefferson County 

Public Library will always be here to connect you to the people, ideas, and inspiration for 

whatever’s next.  Define your destination, and we’ll help you to get there.  So you can 

always be learning. Always be creating. And always be discovering something new. 

 

Next steps in the process includes continued collaboration with the public services 

management team and the combined management team to implement the brand in day‐to‐

day interactions.  There will an internal launch of the brand platform at the All Staff 

Conference on October 9.  Development of the external launch campaign and completion of 

the new website is expected in December 2017. 

 

Naming Program Overview 

Rebecca shared the solicitation package for the Columbine Library naming opportunities. 

Naming opportunities are offered to support programs and resources and assist JCPL’s 

efforts to enhance positive community outcomes in literacy, education, workforce 

development, economic development, equal access to technology and lifelong learning.  

Naming opportunities are offered in conjunction with the Library’s facilities‐update cycle 

(generally every ten years) with first right of renewal.  They are recognized with 

prominently displayed signage on selected rooms/locations, and in the Library and Library 

Foundation’s annual report, websites and social medial channels.  Naming opportunities 

are governed by Jefferson County Public Library policies and guidelines, are subject to 

approval from the Library Board of Trustees, and administered through the Jefferson 

County Library Foundation. 

 

Highlights from 2016/2017 – Jo Schantz 

Jo Schantz, Executive Director of the Jefferson County Library Foundation, presented an 

overview of the Foundation’s 2016/2017 activities and highlights.  Some of those highlights 

included: 



 

3 of 9 

 Fundraising events – Two whale sales: Fall 2016 Whale of a Used Book Sale $59,036; 

and the Spring 2017 Whale of a Used Book Sale $71,595. 

 2016 Holiday Book Sales at Columbine and Standley Lake $6,460. 

 2016 Rare & Novel benefit $19,00 

 (59,036 and 71,595) also holiday book sale 6,460 

 2016 rare and novel benefit – 19,000 

 Donations and online book sales: Colorado Gives Day and Year‐End Appeal $23,906; 

2016 Bequests and Memorial Gifts $8,828; Online Book Sales $45,000 

 Grants received from November 2016 to September 2017 $58,310 

 Friends of the Library volunteered more than 10,00 hours in 2016.sales – online book 

sales 45,000 

 

In 2016 the Foundation provided $133,798 to support Library programs and services.  

Upcoming book sales and fund raising events: 

 2017 Fall Whale of a Book Sale: October 26, 27, 28 and 29, at the Jefferson County 

Fairgrounds 

 Royal Tea with Royalty, November 10, 2017, 3:30‐5:30 at The Briarwood Inn 

 

Earlier in the year stakeholder committees were formed to review key areas of the 

Foundation and provide recommendations. A final report from the executive committee is 

being developed.    

 

Julia Hill Nichols and Tami Shrader expressed appreciation to the staffs and volunteers of 

the Library and Foundation for their continued dedication to making JCPL the center of the 

communities in Jefferson County. 

 

The Joint meeting was adjourned at 5:30 p.m. 

 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE JEFFERSON COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY  

BOARD OF TRUSTEES, September 21, 2017 

 

CALL TO ORDER – REGULAR MEETING OF THE LIBRARY TRUSTEES 

The regular meeting of the Jefferson County Public Library Board of Trustees was held in 

the Belmar Library meeting room on September 21, 2017.  Library Board of Trustees Chair, 

Julia Hill‐Nichols called the joint meeting to order at 5:40 p.m.  Other Trustees present; 

Charles Naumer (Vice‐Chair), Kim Johnson (Secretary), John Bodnar, Brian DeLaet and 

Deborah Deal. 

 

Trustees not present:  All Trustees were present. 

 



 

4 of 9 

Staff present:  Pam Nissler, Executive Director; Donna Walker, Director of Public Services; 

Pat Klein, Director of Information Technology; Sandie Coutts, Director of Employee 

Relations & Development; Julianne Rist, Director of Public Services; Rebecca Winning, 

Director of Communications; Steve Chestnut, Director of Facilities and Construction 

Projects; Gloria Overholt, Interim Director of Finance and Budget; and Amber Fisher, 

Executive Assistant, Office of the Executive Director.  

 

Guests:  Dan Killian, Senior Project Manager, NV5 

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA  

MOTION:  Brian DeLaet moved that the Trustees approve the agenda as presented.  

Seconded by Deborah Deal the motion passed by unanimous vote of all Trustees 

present.   

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

MOTION:  Brian DeLaet moved approval of the minutes of the August 10, 2017 

Study Session.  Seconded by Kim Johnson the minutes were approved by unanimous 

vote of all Trustees present. 

 

MOTION:  Brian DeLaet moved approval of the minutes of the August 17, 2017 

Board meeting.  Seconded by John Bodnar the minutes were approved by unanimous 

vote of all Trustees present. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

There was no public comment.   

 

SENIOR MANAGEMENT TEAM (SMT) OPERATIONAL UPDATES 

Executive Director Update 

Pam Nissler, Executive Director, provided an update to the Board.  At the September Study 

session a request was made for an update on the outdoor learning environment project.  

The design team for the outdoor active learning environment project at Standley Lake 

Library met with the vendor and plan to have a design concept ready by the end of 

November.  Construction would probably start in the spring when the weather is better.   

At the September Study Session, the Library presented information on the purchase of a van 

for Library‐2‐You services.  County Fleet managed the bidding process and has informed 

the Library that they received only one response and that bidder could not meet the 

delivery deadline of December 15.  Library Staff and County Fleet will be reevaluating the 

RFP and plan to purchase the van next year.  In response to a question, the Executive 

Director advised the Board that part of the reevaluation would include how much of an 

impact the deadline date had on the lack of responses to the RFP. 

 



 

5 of 9 

 

Budget and Finance Department 

 

Budget to Actual 

Gloria Overholt, Interim Director of the Finance and Budget Department presented 

information on the activities of the Budget and Finance Department.  Gloria advised the 

Board that this month the Finance Department is starting the projections for year‐end.  At 

this time, the Library anticipates having $765,000 at year‐end that will go into the fund 

balance, which will bring the fund close to the maximum amount.  In response to a 

question, the Board was advised that in the capital budget, the difference between 

encumbered funds is a timing issue.  Purchase orders have not been issued but the Library 

fully expects to utilize the funds. 

 

Columbine Remodel Budget 

As requested by the Board, Gloria Overholt presented a draft document with additional 

detailed information for the Columbine remodel budget.  The report included detailed 

budget and actual numbers in a project‐to‐date format, as well as the timeline of when 

budgets were approved, transferred or amended. This report will allow the Board and staff 

to quickly grasp the costs of each construction project from inception‐to‐date. The reports 

will be prepared by the Finance unit, balanced to general ledger and to the reports provided 

by the construction managers. Any discrepancies will be investigated to ensure the reports 

agree.  The Executive Director noted that in 2016 the placeholder for the Columbine 

Remodel project was $90,000.  When the actual costs came in funds were transferred by the 

finance director to the project budget and was not brought to the Board, as is the practice on 

capital projects.  The Board was asked for feedback on the draft documents for the 

Columbine Remodel Project.  The Board reached consensus on the project summary format 

and its use in future capital projects.  In response to a question, the Board was advised that 

the construction contingency budget was based on 4% of the $4.0 million estimated 

construction cost.  The Library designated a project contingency budget of $250,000 to cover 

project costs that were unanticipated and that were not construction related such as the 

need to replace all cables.   
 

Edgewater Budget 

The 2017 capital projects budget contained the following two projects: 

 17‐07 Edgewater Project      $80,000 

 17‐12 Current Year Facility Expansion  $80,000 

The original  intent of  the 17‐12 Facility Expansion budget was  to have  funds available  to 

start  a  facility  remodel  in  the  event  that  the  voters  of  Edgewater  did  not  approve  the 

Edgewater  project.    The  election  was  successful  and  the  Edgewater  project  is  moving 

forward.    That  $80,000  budget  should  be  combined  with  the  existing  17‐07  Edgewater 

budget, for a total 2017 budget of $160,000 for project planning.  The funds will be used for 



 

6 of 9 

the owner’s representative and architect services.   The Board has previously approved the 

contracts  for Wember,  Inc.  as  owner’s  representative  and Humphries  Poli Architects  as 

multi‐year contracts. 

 

MOTION:  Charles Naumer moved that the Library Board of Trustees authorize the 

transfer of $80,000 from capital project 17‐12 Current Year Facility Expansion to 

capital project 17‐07 Edgewater Project. Seconded by Kim Johnson the motion was 

approved by unanimous vote of all Trustees present. 

 

Public Services 

Columbine Library Remodel Project Update – Dan Killian, NV5 

Dan Killian, Senior Project Manager, NV5, provided an update on the Columbine project.  

Progress is moving rapidly.  Shelving is being unpacked and will be assembled Monday 

morning.  Fire alarm systems testing will take place on Tuesday.  The front entrance canopy 

is being installed.  The first books went through the new sorter and programming is 

underway.   The acoustic panels are in route from Canada and they must be installed before 

shelving, and books can be placed beneath the panels.   

 

NV5 Contract Amendment 

Steve Chestnut, Director of Facilities and Construction Projects addressed the Board and 

noted that the NV5 contract was provided as requested at the September Study Session.  

 

MOTION:  Charles Naumer moved that the Library Board of Trustees authorize the 

Executive Director to amend the contract with NV5 to add an additional 2 months of 

performance period for the sum of $10,000. Seconded by Brian DeLaet the motion 

was suspended for further discussion. 

 

There was wide ranging discussion by the Trustees regarding the terms of the contract, 

including the scope, timeline, NV5 philosophy and whether or not the Library owes the 

additional funds.  The Trustees felt very strongly that when the timeline changed due to 

planning and zoning issues, this should have been brought before the Board and the 

Library could have negotiated.  The Trustees voiced extreme concern regarding the lack of a 

notice of delay and change order. It was expressed that the Board has been placed in a 

difficult position between a relationship with a vendor who is doing a great job and their 

responsibility to the taxpayers.  The discussion included a suggestion that the contract go to 

the County Attorney to determine if the Library owes the money under the terms of the 

contract and if the Library does owe the money it should be at the regular rate.  The 

Executive Director advised the Board that the Library does not have the capacity to take 

over owner’s representative responsibilities to complete the project. Steve Chestnut 

acknowledged and extended apologies for his oversight in not bringing this before the 

Board earlier.  It was confirmed that the original timeline ended in August.   



 

7 of 9 

Dan Killian addressed the Board and noted that when the proposal was developed it was 

estimated that the project would be completed in 14 months.  Due to planning and zoning 

issues and delays, the construction project timeline went from four months to six months.  

Mr. Killian stated that regardless of the Board’s decision he would not walk off the job.  The 

Board voiced extreme concern of the lack of notice of a delay and change order, and restated 

their position that the Library take the necessary steps to make sure this does not happen 

again. 

 

The Chair addressed the Board, confirmed no further discussion was desired, and noted the 

motion before them.   

 

MOTION:  Charles Naumer moved that the Library Board of Trustees authorize the 

Executive Director to amend the contract with NV5 to add an additional 2 months of 

performance period for the sum of $10,000. Seconded by Brian DeLaet the motion 

was approved by majority vote of all Trustees present with Trustees Deborah Deal 

and John Bodnar voting against the motion. 

 

Edgewater Library Update  

Julianne Rist, Director of Public Services, provided an update to the Board on the 

Edgewater Library project.   The project team met with Humphries Poli and the community 

meetings have been scheduled for September 28, and 30.  The groundbreaking ceremony 

will take place this Saturday, September 23.   The RFP for the general contractor closed 

yesterday (September 20) with nine firms submitting proposals.  The Library expects to 

bring that contract to the Board in October.   

 

MidWest Tape Contract 

Julianne Rist addressed the Board and introduced Debbie Mikash, Collections Services 

manager who provided information on the MidWest Tape contract.  MidWest Tape is the 

primary A/V vendor.  JCPL is refreshing the Columbine Library collection and has spent 

$90,000 so far on just DVDs for children.  For the new Edgewater Library JCPL will need to 

purchase an entire collection at approximately $950,000 and will exceed the current $2.0 

million in the not to exceed contract.  In response to a question, the Board was advised that 

materials purchased for Edgewater would circulate throughout the entire system for all of 

Jefferson County.   

 

MOTION:  John Bodnar moved that the Library Board of Trustees authorize an 

increase of the not to exceed amount for MidWest Tape to $3,000,000 for the 2018 

annual renewal and increase the not to exceed amount for the remaining 3 annual 

renewals, as needed, as long as the amount will be supported by the books and 

material budget set by the Board. Seconded by Kim Johnson the motion was 

approved by unanimous vote of all Trustees present. 



 

8 of 9 

Facilities Department 

Facility Master Plan Contract 

Julianne Rist, Director of Public Services, presented information on the project and selected 

consultant for the project.  The consultant will be expected to plan, administer, manage and 

execute the work necessary to provide a full analysis of JCPL’s current and future facility 

needs, including types of services and locations to achieve its strategic and operational 

goals.  Group 4 was selected by the committee.  Group 4 was also very open to leveraging 

the work already competed by JCPL rather than duplicating it.  All of the references came 

back with glowing reports and the statement they would work with the firm again.   Group 

4 acknowledged that completing the plan by the end of the year is an aggressive timeline 

but believe it is workable as long as work can start right away. Staff finalized the scope of 

work and pricing from September 12‐18. 

 

MOTION:  Kim Johnson moved that the Library Board of Trustees authorize the 

Executive Director to sign a contract with Group 4 Architecture Research & Planning, 

Inc. for the completion of the Long Range Facility Master Plan in the amount of 

$78,600.  Seconded by John Bodnar the motion was approved by unanimous vote of 

all Trustees present. 

 

Communications Department 

The Chair addressed the Board and noted the two naming agreements before them. 

 

Naming Agreement, Hill‐Nichols 

MOTION:  Charles Naumer moved that the Library Board of Trustees authorize the 

Executive Director to sign the donation and naming agreement between the Jefferson 

County Public Library, the Jefferson County Library Foundation and Julia Hill‐

Nichols. Seconded by Brian DeLaet the motion was approved by unanimous vote of 

all Trustees present. 

 

Naming Agreement, Buell Foundation 

MOTION:  Charles Naumer moved that the Library Board of Trustees authorize the 

Executive Director to sign the donation and naming agreement between the Jefferson 

County Public Library, the Jefferson County Library Foundation and the Buell 

Foundation.  Seconded by John Bodnar the motion was approved by unanimous vote 

of all Trustees present. 

 

EMERGING ISSUES 

The Executive Director advised the Board that JCPL is experiencing increasing numbers of 

security issues at more libraries.  JCPL initially had a security guard at the Arvada Library.  

A security guard was added to the Belmar Library due to increasing security incidents.  

JCPL is expanding the use of security guards to also include the Lakewood and Standley 



 

9 of 9 

Lake libraries.   The funds to cover the increased security costs have been accommodated in 

the current budget.   

 

BOARD SCHEDULE – NEXT MEETINGS 

 September 28 – BCC & Library Board – 9:30‐10:30 – BCC Board Room 

 October 12 – Study Session – 5:30 pm – Administration Conference Room 

 October 19 – Board Meeting – 5:30 pm – Columbine Library Meeting Room 

 November 9 – Study Session – 5:30 pm – Administration Conference Room 

 November 16 – Board Meeting – 5:30 pm – Lakewood Library Meeting Room 

 December 14 – Board Meeting – 5:30 pm – Lakewood Library Meeting Room 

 

ANNOUNCEMENTS/GENERAL INFORMATION SHARING 

In response to a question, the Board was advised that the Library has not received official 

notice from the Board of County Commissioners regarding Library Board appointments. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

The Board meeting was adjourned at 6:48 p.m. 
 
          
 
 
 
  

Kim Johnson, Secretary 
  



FOUNDATION  



OCTOBER 2017 – FOUNDATION EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT  1 

 

JEFFERSON COUNTY LIBRARY FOUNDATION  

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT 

OCTOBER 2017 (SEPTEMBER 24 – OCTOBER 19)  

By Jo Schantz 

 
1) Executive Director’s notes 

The good news this month is with JCLF’s success in securing grant funding this fiscal year. Although we started off the 
year anticipating just $17,500 in grants (per our original budget), we increased that number in May to $30,000, then in 
September, we increased it again to $50,000. At present, and due to several key grants that have arrived in the last few 
weeks, we have garnered more than $85,000 in grant monies.  
 
A huge thank you to my staff and the Library staff – in particular Donna Walker, Debby Ridgell and Barbara Yeutter Roig ‐
‐ who were so helpful in preparing these successful proposals! 
 
2) Upcoming events  

a) Goldilocks and the Little Bear 
This annual fundraiser (benefiting JCPL, the Clear Creek Library District and the Bailey Public Library) will be held 
on Thursday, October 26, 5:30 to 9:30 p.m. at the Little Bear Inn in Evergreen. Tickets are $20 in advance, $25 at 
the door. 
 

b) Fall Whale of a Used Book Sale – October 27‐29 at the Jefferson County Fairgrounds! Friends‐only Preview Night 
is Thursday, Oct. 26, 6 to 8 p.m. 
 

c) Royal Tea with Royalty – a Foundation fundraiser that will be held at the elegant Briarwood Inn in Golden on 
Friday, Nov. 10, 3:30 to 5:30 p.m. Tickets are $75 per person, which includes a four‐course high tea with 
signature cocktail, plus a live “mystery” auction, a tea cup sale and entertainment by 2014 Ms. Colorado Senior 
America Sharon Nuanes, performing Le Magique Royale. 
 
Our “royal” guest list features: 2017 Miss Wheelchair Colorado, the entire slate of Evergreen Rodeo Royalty, 
former Miss Hispanic Fraternidad Colorado, former Miss Colorado USA, plus 2015 and 2017 Ms. Colorado Senior 
America. Our celebrity emcee is 9NEWS Meteorologist Danielle Grant. 
 
Our new event sponsors include: Allegro Coffee Company, Cat Care Society, Frederick G. Fish Foundation, 
Genesee Commercial Group, High Point Financial and Guaranty Bank. We are also pleased by the continuing 
support from Solera Bank, and our Friends Community Partners: Westerra Credit Union, Bandimere Speedway 
and Pinkard Construction. 
 

3) Meetings and networking 
On September 22, I was pleased to participate in the check presentation (as a result of the success of Summer Reading) 
to Foothills Animal Shelter. The following day, I was glad to be present at the ground‐breaking ceremony for the new 
Edgewater Civic Center and Library.  
 
It was an “award‐winning day,” at the Best of Wheat Ridge Business Awards breakfast that Tiffany Fulbright and I 
attended on September 18. We were pleased that one of our newest Board members, Tim Rogers, was honored with 
the Mayor’s Award at this celebration.  
 
The Golden Mayor’s awards event was held at Colorado School of Mines’ Green Center on Oct. 3, and I was happy to 
staff an information table that evening to share details on the Whale of a Used Book Sale, our upcoming Royal Tea 



OCTOBER 2017 – FOUNDATION EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT  2 

 

benefit and Friends memberships. In an effort to introduce potential new Board members to the Foundation, I had lunch 
with candidate Ron Benson (Keller Williams Real Estate) that same day.  
 
Our JCLF staff and key volunteers met with Jeffco Fairgrounds staff on Oct. 4 for a site visit of the facility, and to ensure 
that all event policies were reviewed and carried out. The next day, I participated in the monthly Senior Management 
Team meeting (SMT) held at the Lakewood Library. Library Communications staff members and I met that same 
afternoon to map out the annual end‐of‐year appeal scheduled to be mailed out in December.  
 
All‐staff day took place at the Lakewood Cultural Center on Oct. 9. That afternoon, I was part of a conference call for the 
Jefferson County Community Services Advisory Board, in preparation for a meeting on Tuesday, Oct. 17, where our 
Board interviewed and selected recipients of more than $250,000 in funding from the 2018 Community Services 
allotment. 
 
The Good News Breakfast Committee met on Oct. 11, and I also met with the new Outreach and Events Coordinator, Jill 
Tigner, from Seniors’ Resource Center, to discuss fundraising. That afternoon, I attended a nonprofit roundtable at Red 
Rocks Community College, hosted by the West Chamber. In the evening, I was happy to be part of the kick‐off event for 
the Library’s Stouts & Stories/Ales & Tales beer fest at Lamar Street Station in Arvada. 
 
Board Vice President Jeannie Mann and I met on Oct. 12 to review and discuss potential Board member candidates. On 
Oct. 6, I met with Peggy Penberthy of the Employer’s Council in preparation for a meeting scheduled with Peggy and 
Pam Nissler on Oct. 16. It was my pleasure to volunteer for the Golden Chamber’s annual Knock‐Your‐Boots Off Chili 
Cook‐off on Oct. 14. 

 
4) Grants, Events and Sponsorships 

I’m pleased to report that JCLF netted nearly $800 in support from four restaurant fundraisers that were held in 
September. Monies came from a percentage of food sales during designated dates and times from these supporters: 
240 Union Restaurant, Modern Market, Rubio’s Coastal Grill and Jose O’Shea’s Restaurant. 
 
Grants/sponsorships approved/received: 

 Verizon Foundation ‐‐ $10,000 for Girls in STEM at the Golden Library 

 Community First Foundation ‐‐ $24,125 in general operating support 
 

Grant proposals pending: 

 City of Wheat Ridge ‐‐  $1,605 (for iPod touch/speakers, and 4 Magformers building kits) 

 The Denver Foundation ‐‐ $4,100 for 1,000 Books Before Kindergarten 

 Ball Foundation ‐‐ $18,720 for STEM/STEAM program supplies and equipment at Columbine Library 

 The Foundation at Rolling Hills ‐‐ $5,000 general operating support 
TOTAL PENDING: $29,425 
 

Grant proposals upcoming: 

 Melvin & Elaine Wolf Foundation – funding for 2018 Summer Reading and Early Literacy programs 

 Golden Civic Foundation – funding for 2018 Golden Library programs  



Operational Updates 

 

Executive Director Update 

 

 



 
 

 

To:    Library Board of Trustees 

From:    Pam Nissler, Executive Director 

Re:    Executive Director Update – October 2017 

 

 

This past month, I participated in the following events and meetings: 

 I spoke at the ground breaking for the Edgewater Library 

 I participated in interviews with construction firm finalists for the Edgewater Library. The firm of 

Fransen Pitman was chosen for the thorough process and extent of the services that they 

proposed and for the fact that their price was the lowest price. 

 I attended the Saturday Edgewater community input meeting. 

 I participated in the initial web conference with Group 4, the firm that will be preparing a long 

term facility plan for the library. 

 I attended the ARC Summit of Hope as the guest of Jim Bartlett, chair of the West Chamber. 

 I participated in the countywide Diversity and Inclusivity Summit. 

 I participated in the All Staff Conference and gave my “State of the Library” report. 

 I attended the staff and volunteer sneak peek at the Columbine Library. 

 I met with Julia and Chic for our monthly breakfast meeting. 

 I attended the Elected Officials Personnel Board Meeting. 

 I attended the Children and Youth Leadership Council meeting.  



SENIOR MANAGEMENT TEAM (SMT) OPERATIONAL 

UPDATES 

 

Finance & Budget Department 

 

 

 

 



 
 
to: Pam Nissler, Executive Director 

from: Gloria Overholt, Interim Director of Finance & Budget 

re: Finance Monthly Report 

 Budget to Actual Tables 

 

date: October 19, 2017   

A. Budget to Actual Tables 

 

The Budget to Actual Tables for the period ending September 2017 will be prepared as soon 

as the analysis has been completed.  The Tables will be available for the meeting, along with 

the analysis discussion. 

 



 
 
to: Pam Nissler, Executive Director 

from: Gloria Overholt, Interim Director of Finance & Budget 

re: Finance Monthly Report 

 Budget to Actual Tables – September 2017 

 Project-to-Date Information – September 2017 

 2018 Proposed Budget Revision 

date: October 19, 2017   

 

A. Budget to Actual Tables September 2017 

 

Attached are the Financial Tables for the month of September 2017. 

 

Most revenues are on track, additional property taxes will be collected through the end of the 

year.  Library fines are not expected to meet budget as a recent analysis indicated.  Estimates 

are that fines will fall short by $66k.  Contributions are also expected to fall short by $150k.  

Staff will closely monitor these two particular revenues, and be ready to adjust if needed. 

 

Revenues earned on pooled investments are above total budget for the year.  The Library’s 

cash balance at the end of September is $30 million.  These funds are pooled with the funds 

from all County funds and invested in specific investment instruments.  Interest is allocated to 

the funds based on their average daily balance. Until the final 2017 numbers are posted, the 

total investment income will fluctuate.  Year- end adjustments of gain and loss on investments 

and adjustments for fair market value will determine the total investment income. 

 

Expenditures for Salaries and Benefits are expected to be below budget, and the vacancy 

factor will be met.  Projections through the month of September indicate that salaries and 

benefits will be below budget by about $266k.    Library Books and Material will be spent, as 

will the cost allocation budgets.  Supplies are projected to be under budget by $168k. Costs 

for office supplies, janitorial supplies and copy paper are trending on the low side.  The closure 

of Columbine contributed to some of these lowered expenses.  Other Services and Charges 

are trending low, projected to be under budget by $100k. 

 

Capital Projects were analyzed closely this month.  The Columbine remodel project is 

expected to come in at just close to $4 million.  Projects 17-09, 17-10 and 17-11 will not be 

finished this year and a carryover amendment may be necessary in 2018.    

 

Fund Balance Projection   As of September the projection for fund balance is a decrease at 

year end of approximately $1,002 million.  This consists of operating savings in the amount of 

approximately $557k and savings on the Columbine project of $536K.  In addition, revenue 

shortfalls in specific accounts are projected to be $154k.  The combination of these projections 

will decrease fund balance by approximately $1,002 million, resulting in a year end fund 

balance in the neighborhood of $16,489 million.  



 
 

 

Encumbrances (purchase orders issued) for the Library operating accounts total 

approximately $1.193 million as of the end of September.  Capital Projects purchase orders 

total approximately $1.669 million as reported on Table 6.  Total encumbrances for the Library 

as of September are $2.862 million 

 

B. Project-to-Date Financial Information 

Attached are the Project-to-Date reports for the Columbine Remodel Project and the 

Edgewater Tenant Finish Project.  These reports contain detailed budget and actual numbers 

in a project-to-date format, as well as the timeline of when budgets were approved, transferred 

or amended.   

C. 2018 Proposed Budget Revision 

During the discussions of the 2018 Proposed Budget staff informed the Board that the final 

assessed valuation numbers from the County Assessor’s office had not yet been released.  If 

the assessed valuation went down due to protests by citizens the revenue projected to be 

realized by the Library would decrease.  The assessed valuation for the county was reduced 

and the result is that the Library’s anticipated property tax revenue will be reduced by $2.563 

million.  In addition, an adjustment to Salaries and Benefits would also need to be addressed.  

Several options were open for Board discussion including increasing the mill levy from 4.000 

to 4.285, reducing expenditures, or using the Library’s fund balance to close the gap. 

The Board tentatively agreed to use fund balance for the 2018 budget to close fund the 

Edgewater Project in the amount of $2,600,000.  The use of fund balance is within the Board 

of Trustees authority as defined in the “Use of Fund Balance Policy” adopted by the Board. 

 

 

 



Sources and Uses of Funds

Final 

2016 

Budget

Final 2016 

Actual

2017 

Amended 

Budget

YTD Actual 

09/30/2017

$ Variance 

2017 

Budget

Budget to 

Actual %

Sources of Funds

Revenues

Property Taxes

Property Taxes - Operating 31,558,023$  31,415,219$  34,728,137$  34,497,687$  (230,450)$        99.34%

Property Taxes - Capital 1,519,998      1,473,398      1,664,831      1,624,028      (40,803)            97.55%

Total Taxes 33,078,021$  32,888,617$  36,392,968$  36,121,715$  (271,253)$        99.25%

Federal & State Grants 126,734$       131,085$       130,000$       131,272$       1,272$             100.98%

Fines & Fees 799,000         700,219         792,970         523,220         (269,750)          65.98%

Other Revenue 450,021         327,952         546,220         516,426         (29,794)            94.55%

Total Other Revenues 1,375,755      1,159,256      1,469,190      1,170,918      (298,272)          79.70%

Sub Total Operating Revenues 34,453,776$  34,047,873$  37,862,158$  37,292,633$  (569,525)$        98.50%

Transfer from Fund Balance 2,057,647$    -$               2,173,025$    -$               -$                 N/A

Transfer to Fund Balance -                 4,383,466      -                 12,271,603    14,444,628      N/A

Total Sources of Funds 32,396,129$  29,664,407$  40,035,183$  25,021,030$  (15,014,153)$   62.50%

Uses of Funds

Operating Expenditures

Salaries & Employee Benefits

Salaries  $  12,624,592  $  11,926,754 12,592,392$   $    9,216,942 (3,375,450)$     73.19%

Benefits        3,845,432        3,444,953 3,793,380             2,664,151 (1,129,229)       70.23%

Sub-Total Salaries & Benefits  $  16,470,024  $  15,371,707  $  16,385,772  $  11,881,093  $    (4,504,679) 72.51%

Collection: Library Books & Materials 5,854,776$    5,816,450$    8,349,727$     $    5,470,082  $    (2,879,645) 65.51%

Supplies 943,313         974,281         1,299,625                680,311 (619,314)          52.35%

Operating Capital -                 -                 12,000                              -   (12,000)            0.00%

Other Services & Charges 3,407,915      2,758,004      3,800,879             2,183,216 (1,617,663)       57.44%

Internal Transactions /Cost Allocation 1,450,848      1,386,406      1,599,551             1,241,763 (357,788)          77.63%

Total Operating Expenditures  $  28,126,876  $  26,306,848  $  31,447,554  $  21,456,465  $    (9,991,089) 68.23%

Financing & Debt Service  $    1,584,388  $    1,554,199  $    1,548,403  $       126,368  $    (1,422,035) 8.16%

Capital Projects  $    2,684,865  $    1,803,360  $    7,039,226  $    3,438,197 (3,601,029)$     48.84%

Total Uses of Funds  $  32,396,129  $  29,664,407  $  40,035,183  $  25,021,030  $  (15,014,153) 62.50%

-                 

TABLE 1

JEFFERSON COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY

2017 ACTUAL TO BUDGET

TOTAL FUND SUMMARY

S:\BusOffice\Fin_Fin\Board Reports\2017 Tables\09 Sep 2017\09 Sept 2017 Tables GO



Final 

2016 

Budget

Final 2016 

Actual

2017 

Amended 

Budget

YTD Actual 

09/30/2017

Year End 

Projected 

Fund Balance

Beginning Fund Balance 11,721,384$    13,108,503$      13,779,031$      17,491,968$ 17,491,968$    

Revenues

Operating Revenues 32,933,778$    32,574,475$      36,197,327$      35,668,605$ 36,042,960$    

Capital Funding 1,519,998        1,473,398          1,664,831          1,624,028     1,664,831        

Total Revenues 34,453,776$    34,047,873$      37,862,158$      37,292,633$ 37,707,791$    

Expenditures

Operating Expenditures 28,126,876$    26,306,848$      31,459,554$      21,456,465$ 30,902,052$    

Debt Service 1,584,388     1,554,199          1,548,403          126,368        1,548,403        

Capital Projects 2,684,865     1,803,360          7,039,226          3,438,197     6,260,076        

Total Expenditures 32,396,129$    29,664,407$      40,047,183$      25,021,030$ 38,710,531$    

Increase/(Decrease) in Fund Balance 2,057,647$      4,383,466$        (2,185,025)$      12,271,603$ (1,002,740)$     

Ending Fund Balance  $    13,779,031  $      17,491,968  $     11,594,006  $29,763,571 16,489,228$    

Above/(Below) Minimum 5,165,587$      8,878,524$        2,128,467$        20,298,032$ 7,023,689$      

Above/(Below) Maximum N/A 265,080$           (7,337,073)$      10,832,492$ (2,441,851)       

Fund Balance Policy

Minimum Fund Balance

16% of Current Year Revenues 5,512,604$      6,057,945$        

9% of Current Year Revenues - Uncertainty 3,100,840        3,407,594          

Total Minimum F/B Reserve Requirement 8,613,444$      9,465,540          

Maximum Fund Balance

50% of Current Year Budgeted Revenues 17,226,888      18,931,079        

Total Maximum F/B Reserve Requirement 17,226,888$    18,931,079$      

Adopted Adopted Revised Change

2016 Actual 2017 2017 2016 to 2017

Budget 2016 Budget Budget

FTE Positions - Active 207.50 181.50 207.50 208.50 27.00

FTE Positions - Reserved 7.50 33.50 7.50 6.50 -27.00

Total Authorized Positions 215.00 215.00 215.00 215.00 0.00

JEFFERSON COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY

POSITION AUTHORIZATIONS (FTEs)

2017 ACTUAL TO BUDGET

TABLE 2A

JEFFERSON COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY

FUND BALANCE REQUIREMENTS

2017 ACTUAL TO BUDGET

TABLE 2B

S:\BusOffice\Fin_Fin\Board Reports\2017 Tables\09 Sep 2017\09 Sept 2017 Tables GO



Sources and Uses of Funds

Final 

2016 

Budget

Final 2016 

Actual

2017 

Amended 

Budget

YTD Actual 

09/30/2017

Projected 

Year-End 

2017

Variance 

2017 Budget

Sources of Funds

Revenues

Taxes

  Property Taxes - Operating 32,257,736$     31,268,777$     35,331,413$ 34,465,487$ 35,331,413$ -$              

  Delinquent Taxes 45,241              122,018            50,124          15,408          15,408          (34,716)         

  Prior Year Cancellations (116,244)           -                    (76,556)         -                (76,556)         -                

  Urban Renewal (667,853)           -                    (606,610)       -                (606,610)       -                

  Penalties & Interest 39,143              24,424              29,766          16,792          16,792          (12,974)         

Total Taxes 31,558,023$     31,415,219$     34,728,137$ 34,497,687$ 34,680,447$ (47,690)$       

Federal & State Grants 126,734$          131,085$          130,000$      131,272$      131,272$      1,272$          

Library Fines 650,000            585,214            639,500        430,343        573,791        (65,709)         

Other Fees 149,000            115,005            153,470        92,877          133,218        (20,252)         

Investment Income 149,021            100,072            149,200        232,078        232,078        82,878          

Contributions from Private Sources 200,000            142,969            200,000        42,194          50,000          (150,000)       

Other Revenue 101,000            84,912              197,020        242,154        242,154        45,134          

Total Revenues 32,933,778$     32,574,476$     36,197,327$ 35,668,605$ 36,042,960$ (154,367)$     

    

Uses of Funds

Operating Expenditures

Salaries & Employee Benefits

Salaries 11,222,688$     10,300,740$     11,398,213$ 7,937,140$   10,744,875$ (653,338)$     

Awards & Bonuses 83,796          48,519              100,000        -                100,000        -                

Termination Pay -                113,718            -                35,043          35,043          35,043          

Temporary Pay 1,806,537     1,462,528         1,946,245     1,243,528     1,622,415     (323,830)       

Overtime 8,900            1,249                13,900          1,231            13,900          -                

Vacancy Savings (498,628)       -                    (865,966)       -                -                865,966        

Benefits 3,846,731     3,444,953         3,793,380     2,664,151     3,603,426     (189,954)       

Total Salaries & Benefits  $    16,470,024  $    15,371,707  $16,385,772  $ 11,881,093 16,119,659$ (266,113)$     

Library Books & Materials              $      4,820,976 4,584,052$       6,900,603$   4,200,793$   6,900,603$   -$              

Library Computer Materials            926,650        1,115,396         1,317,744     1,141,323     1,317,744     -                

Library Periodicals                          130,650        117,002            131,380        127,966        131,380        -                

Sub-Total Library Collections 5,878,276     5,816,450         8,349,727     5,470,082     8,349,727     -                

Supplies 943,313        974,281            1,299,625     680,311        1,131,059     (168,566)       

Other Services & Charges 3,407,915     2,758,004         3,812,879     2,183,216     3,712,901     (99,978)         

Operating Capital -                -                    12,000          -                -                (12,000)         

Direct Internal Charges 127,061        136,345            178,688        113,660        167,843        (10,845)         

Indirect Cost Allocation 696,338        696,338            758,653        505,769        758,653        -                

Intra County Transactions 627,449        553,723            662,210        622,334        662,210        -                

Total Operating Expenditures 28,150,376$     26,306,849$     31,459,554$ 21,456,465$ 30,902,052$ (557,502)$     

Total Uses of Funds 28,150,376$     26,306,849$     31,459,554$ 21,456,465$ 30,902,052$ (557,502)$     

TABLE 3

JEFFERSON COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY

2017 ACTUAL TO BUDGET

OPERATING EXPENDITURES

S:\BusOffice\Fin_Fin\Board Reports\2017 Tables\09 Sep 2017\09 Sept 2017 Tables GO



Sources and Uses of Funds

Final 

2016 

Budget

Final 2016 

Actual

2017 

Amended 

Budget

YTD Actual 

09/30/2017

Projected Year-

End 2017

Variance 

2017 Budget

Debt Service

Principal - Arvada (2005-2024)  $   507,411  $       507,411  $    516,095  $             -   516,095$            -                 

Interest - Arvada (2005-2024)       119,285           119,285        107,157         53,579 107,157              -                 

Principal  - Refunding Series 2013       632,690           632,690        632,740                 -   632,740              -                 

Interest - Refunding Series 2013       149,314           119,125        116,772         72,789 116,772              -                 

Principal - COP - Capital Projects       142,143           142,143        142,143                 -   142,143              -                 

Interest - COP - Capital Projects         33,545             33,545       33,496                 -   33,496                -                 

Total Debt Service  $1,584,388  $    1,554,199  $ 1,548,403  $   126,368 1,548,403$         -$               

Arvada

Total Issue $8,886,000

Term 2005-2024    June & Dec

Use - Arvada Library Facility

Build America Bonds 

Total Issue $6,293,000

Original Term 2011-2020

Refunding Term 2013-2024 June & Dec

Use - Lakewood HVAC

Energy Conservation

Book Sorters

Library Service Center Remodel

Certificates of Participation (COP)

Total Issue $995,000

Term 2014-2020   June & Dec

Use - Belmar Roof Replacement

Columbine HVAC

Columbine Parking Lot

Standley Lake Parking Lot

TABLE 4

JEFFERSON COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY

DEBT SERVICE DETAIL

2017 ACTUAL TO BUDGET

S:\BusOffice\Fin_Fin\Board Reports\2017 Tables\09 Sep 2017\09 Sept 2017 Tables GO



Sources and Uses of Funds

Final 

2016 

Budget

Final 2016 

Actual
2017 Budget

2017 

Amended 

Budget

YTD Actual 

09/30/2017

Projected Year-

End 2017

Variance 

2017 Budget

Sources of Funds

Property Tax - Capital - 4.5% 1,519,998$   1,473,398$      1,664,831$   1,664,831$   1,624,028$   1,664,831$      -$              

Total Sources of Funds 1,519,998$   1,473,398$      1,664,831$   1,664,831$   1,624,028$   1,664,831$       $               -   

Uses of Funds

Annual Replacement & Maintenance Program (ARM)

ARM-01 Capital Maintenance 160,000$      170,424$          $     250,000  $     250,000  $       91,031 250,000$         -$              

ARM-02 Furniture & Equipment 64,550          58,064                       56,000           56,000           32,880 56,000             -                

ARM-03 Computer Replacement Plan 250,000        218,476                   250,000         250,000           88,177 250,000           -                

ARM-04 Book Sorter Sinking Fund 200,000        -                           200,000         400,000                   -   248,791           (151,209)       

ARM-05 IT Infrastructure Replacement 369,000        316,658                   462,000         497,665         328,661 497,665           -                

2016 Projects

16-01 Lakewood Parking Lot 288,975        274,922                             -                     -               7,355 7,355               7,355            

16-02 LSC Parking Lot 69,000          67,699                               -                     -                     -   -                   -                

16-03 Evergreen Condensing Unit 140,000        54,204                               -             42,979           31,848 42,979             -                

16-04 Wheat Ridge HVAC Replacement 48,000          -                                     -             41,600           41,599 41,600             -                

16-05 Standley Lake Boiler Replacement 62,800          62,781                               -                     -                     -   -                   -                

16-06 Admin Space Plan/Reconfiguration 10,000          8,031                                 -                     -                     -   -                   -                

16-07 Belmar Carpet Repair 6,000            5,939                                 -                     -   -                   -                

16-08 Columbine Tree & Sidewalk Replace 25,000          27,807                               -                     -                     -   -                   -                

16-09 Implement Wireless Upgrade 35,000          8,221                                 -                     -                     -   -                   -                

16-10 Records Management Software -                -                             50,000           79,000                   -   79,000             -                

16-11 Increase Wireless Access Points 60,000          16,614                               -                     -                     -   -                   -                

16-12 IT Software Projects 71,000          26,499                               -             11,809           11,809 11,809             -                

16-13 III Database Server 56,000          81,660                               -               5,560             5,560 5,560               -                

16-14 High Availability Internet Redundancy 38,000          -                                     -                     -                     -   -                   -                

16-15 Replace DVD/Disk Washer 8,000            7,990                           8,000                   -                     -   -                   -                

16-18 IT Erate Data Cabeling -                26,344                               -                     -                     -   -                   -                

2017 Projects

17-01 Evergreen AHU Rebuild -                -                           135,000         135,000                   -   135,000           -                

17-02 Entry Door Replacement -                -                             36,800           36,800                   -   36,800             -                

17-03 Virtual Servers Upgrades -                -                             91,000           91,000                   -   91,000             -                

17-04 Encore Server -                -                             37,000                   -                     -   -                   -                

17-05 Implement RFID/Self Check 337,740        272,000                   250,000         315,740           88,125 315,740           -                

17-08 Large Format Printer -                -                             10,000           10,000             4,477 4,477               (5,523)           

17-09 JCPL Mobile Experience -                -                             15,700           15,700                   -   -                   15,700          

17-10 Mobility Solution -                -                             25,000           25,000             1,300 1,300               23,700          

17-11 Long-Range Facility Master Plan -                -                             75,000           78,600                   -   25,000             53,600          

17-12 Current Year Facility Expansion -                -                             80,000                   -                     -   -                   -                

Multi-Year Projects Construction Projects

16-16 Columbine Remodel 385,800        99,027                  4,250,000      4,536,773      2,683,661 4,000,000        (536,773)       

17-07 Edgewater Library -                -                             80,000         160,000           21,714 160,000           -                

Total Capital Projects 2,684,865$    $      1,803,360  $  6,361,500  $  7,039,226  $  3,438,197  $      6,260,076  $    (593,150)

Book Sorter Sinking Fund Reserve

Beginning Balance -$              -$                 200,000$      200,000$      -$              200,000$         

Source 200,000        200,000           200,000        400,000        -                400,000           

Use -                -                   -                -                -                (248,791)          

Balance 200,000$      200,000$         400,000$      600,000$      -$              351,209$         

TABLE 5

JEFFERSON COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY

CAPITAL PROJECTS

2017 ACTUAL TO BUDGET

S:\BusOffice\Fin_Fin\Board Reports\2017 Tables\09 Sep 2017\09 Sept 2017 Tables GO



ARM-01 Capital Maintenance 250,000$         91,031$           10,331$            101,362$         148,638$         

ARM-02 Furniture & Equipment 56,000             32,880             16,889              49,769             6,231               

ARM-03 Computer Replacement Plan 250,000           88,177             -                        88,177             161,823           

ARM-04 Book Sorter Sinking Fund 400,000           -                       248,791            248,791           151,209           

ARM-05 IT Infrastructure Replacement 497,665           328,661           22,196              350,857           146,808           

16-01 Lakewood Parking Lot -                       7,355               

16-03 Evergreen Condensing Unit 42,979             31,848             -                        31,848             11,131             

16-04 Wheat Ridge HVAC Replacement 41,600             41,599             -                        41,599             1                      

16-10 Records Management Software               50,000 -                       -                        -                       50,000             

16-12 IT Software Projects               11,809 11,809             -                        11,809             -                       

16-13 III Database Server                 5,560 5,560               -                        5,560               -                       

16-15 Replace DVD/Disk Washer                       -   -                       -                        -                       -                       

17-01 Evergreen AHU Rebuild 135,000           -                       -                        -                       135,000           

17-02 Entry Door Replacement               36,800 -                       -                        -                       36,800             

17-03 Virtual Servers upgrades               91,000 -                       -                        -                       91,000             

17-04 Encore Server                       -   -                       -                        -                       -                       

17-05 Implement RFID/Self Check             315,740 88,125             26,530              114,655           201,085           

17-08 Large Format Printer 10,000             4,477               -                        4,477               5,523               

17-09 JCPL Mobile Experience 15,700             -                       -                        -                       15,700             

17-10 Mobility Solution 25,000             1,300               -                        1,300               23,700             

17-11 Long-Range Facility Master Plan 75,000             -                       -                        -                       75,000             

17-12 Current Year Facility Expansion -                       -                       -                        -                       -                       

Multi-Year Projects Construction Projects

16-16 Columbine Remodel          4,536,773 2,683,661        1,145,539         3,829,200        707,573           

17-07 Edgewater Library 160,000           21,714             199,589            221,303           (61,303)            

Total Capital Projects 7,006,626$      3,438,197$      1,669,865$       5,100,707$      1,905,919$      

 Remaining 

Budget 

TABLE 6

JEFFERSON COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS

2017 BUDGET TO ACTUAL

Project

 2017 

Amended 

Budget 

 YTD Actual

09/30/2017 

 YTD 

Encumbrances 

09/30/2017 

 YTD Total 

Actual + Enc 



Remodel of Columbine Library to include:

       Move main library entrance to the eastside to improve handicap access

       Provide drive-up book drop

       Modifications to exterior drive to provide new exit and landscaping

       Enhanced noise reduction through acoustic panels

       Enclosed children’s area

       Significantly enhanced IT systems in the building

       Replaced furniture and fixtures, and shelving

       Installed a maker space

       Enclosed staff space to increase efficiencies and provide security

$4,250,000 2017 Construction Budget

385,800           2016 Phase 1 Planning Budget

$4,635,800 Total Project Budget

Budget

$90,000 Columbine Phase 1 Planning Budget Approved by BOT December 10, 2015

295,800           Budget Transfer

$385,800 2016 Project Budget

Contracts

$107,735 NV5 - Owners Representative - Contract Approved by the Board June 16, 2016

290,775           Humphries Poli Architect - Contract Approved by the Board August 18, 2016

$398,510

Actual Expenditures

$47,190 NV5 - Owners Rep

49,871             Humphries Poli - Architect

1,875               Fransen Pittman - General Contractor

91                    Miscellaneous, Food/Beverages

$99,027

$385,800 2016 Budget

($99,027) 2016 Actual Expenditures

$286,773 Carry Forward from 2016 to 2017

$4,250,000
2017 Budget of $4,250,000 Approved by BOT on December 8, 2016 *see breakout of 
construction below

286,773           Carry Forward from 2016

$4,536,773 2017 Project Budget

* Detail of Construction Budget

$489,070 Design Engineering and Consulting

32,000             Site Survey, Geotech and Materials Testing

2,814,052        Construction

47,300             Security

515,000           Furniture Fixtures and Equipment

102,578           Contingency

$4,000,000

250,000           JCPL Contingency

$4,250,000

2017 Timeline

Columbine Library Remodel
Project to Date - Budget to Actual

September 30, 2017

Project Budget

2016 Timeline

S:\BusOffice\Fin_Fin\Construction Projects\Columbine Project\Columbine Construction Budget



Phase 1 - 
Planning

Design, 
Engineering 

and 
Consulting

City & 
Planning 

Fees/Utilities

Site Survey, 
Geotech and 

Materials 
Testing

Construction IT/AV/Security FF&E Contingency Other Misc NV5 Total
JCPL 

Contingency
Total

NV5 Budget 12/28/2016 385,800$      413,510$      31,000$       16,000$       2,749,490$  10,000$         580,000$      200,000$     4,000,000$  250,000$     4,635,800$  
Dec-16 30,565          (30,565)         -                
Jan-17 25,000          73,642          (75,000)         (23,642)         -                
Apr-17 (15,000)         (6,324)           44,876            10,000          (33,552)         -                

May-17 19,195          (1,726)           (17,469)         -                
Jun-17 (1,030)           (7,576)             8,606            -                
Jul-17 (1,096)           9,176            1,096              (9,176)           -                

Aug-17 11,696          (189)              70,622            (82,129)         -                
Sep-17 (10,000)         (9,200)           (66,390)           (5,440)           87,825          3,205            -                

unknown date 800               (16,000)         16,000          (800)              -                

Revised Budget 385,800$      490,766$      -$             21,515$       2,823,228$  52,627$         509,560$      99,099$       3,205$         4,000,000$  250,000$     4,635,800$  
Subtotal of transfers 77,256          (31,000)         5,515            73,738          42,627            (70,440)         (100,901)       3,205            -                

2016 Actual
September 91$               -$              -$              -$              -$              -$                -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              91$               
October 36,411          36,411          
November 22,382          22,382          
December 40,143          40,143          

Total 2016 99,027          -                -               -              -              -                -               -              -              -              -              99,027        

2017 Actual
January 79,843          4,800            84,643          
February 388               21,381          6,450            1,875            30,094          
March 56,033          (1,875)           54,158          
April 22,387          9,310            1,875            33,572          
May 99                 65,792          112,533        405               386               179,213        
June 51,290          216,898        10,686            11,288          290,162        
July 18,225          3,247            550,051        15,728            77,950          6                   665,206        
August 18,093          1,553            786,468        50,615            12,000          868,729        
September 19,863          443,695        663                 13,662          477,883        
October -                
November -                
December -                
Total 2017 487               352,908        -               25,360        2,111,520   77,691          115,304       -              -              -              392             2,683,661   

Total Project-to-Date 99,514          352,908        -               25,360        2,111,520   77,691          115,304       -              -              -              392             2,782,688   

Remaining Budget 286,286$      137,858$      -$             (3,844)$        711,708$     (25,064)$        394,256$      99,099$       3,205$         -$             249,608$     1,853,112$  

Columbine Library Remodel
Project - Budget to Actual

Inception-to-Date
September 30, 2017



$160,000

2017 Phase I Planning Budget - Board approved transfer of $80k from Project 17-12 Current 

Year Facility Expansion to Edgewater Project - Sept 21, 2017

2,600,000          2018 Tenant Finish Budget

$2,760,000 Total Project Budget

Contracts

$117,803 Wember - Owners Rep 04/10/2017

94,750               Humpries Poli - Architect 07/27/2017

Frans & Pitman Construction

$212,553

$160,000 2017 Budget 

$21,713 2017 Actual

$181,713 Remaining 2017 Budget

2018 Timeline

In collaboration with the City of Edgewater, JCPL will provide a new 10,000 sq ft library.  The City of Edgewater 

will pay for the land and the construction of their new Civic Center.   JCPL will provide the tenant finishes of the 

Library space and operate the new Library.  This library will align with JCPL's vision of a 21st Century Library.  

Edgewater Library Remodel
Project to Date - Budget to Actual

Project Description

Project Budget

2017 Timeline

September 30, 2017

S:\BusOffice\Fin_Fin\Construction Projects\Edgewater Project\Edgewater Construction Budget



Design & 

Engineering

Owner's 

Requirements 

(Rep) Construction

Permits, Utility 

Fees, Impact 

Fees & Resource 

Rights FFE Technology

Contingencies & 

Escalation Total

Budget - Wember 4/12/17 210,900$              205,403$              1,343,500$            23,693$              319,500$             387,703$             268,700$             2,759,399$             

-                          

-                          

Revised Budget 210,900$              205,403$              1,343,500$            23,693$              319,500$             387,703$             268,700$             2,759,399$             

2017 Actual

May -$                      4,480$                  -$                       -$                    -$                     -$                     -$                     4,480$                    

June 2,953                    2,953                      

July 1,316                    1,316                      

Aug 978                       978                         

Sept 5,104                    6,881                    11,985                    

Oct -                          

Nov -                          

Dec -                          

Total 2017 5,104                    16,609                  -                         -                      -                       -                       -                       21,713                    

Total Expenditures 5,104                    16,609                  -                         -                      -                       -                       -                       21,713                    

Remaining Budget 205,796$              188,794$              1,343,500$            23,693$              319,500$             387,703$             268,700$             2,737,686$             

Edgewater Library Project

Project - Budget to Actual

Inception-to-Date

September 30, 2017



Operational Updates 

 

Public Services 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 

 

7525 South Jasmine Court 
Centennial, CO 80112 

303-378-4130 

www.wemberinc.com/blog 
facebook.com/Wemberinc 
wemberinc.com 

Project Monthly Update Report 
 

Project Name:     Edgewater Public Library 
Wember Inc. Project Number:   EPL (2017.08) 
Issue Date:     October 10, 2017 
Purpose: Project Update thru October 10, 2017 

 
Dear Executive Director Pam Nissler  
The purpose of this update is to report on the current status of the Edgewater Public Library. 
 
Summary 

Since the following report issued in September the project has been focused on moving through the initial design 
phases and procuring a General Contractor to assist on estimating during the initial project phases.   
 

o Project Successes 

 Community meetings completed 

 Construction Manager at Risk (CMaR) RFP process has progressed with recommended award 
being issued to the board of trustees. 

 Mechanical Electrical Plumbing (MEP) meeting successfully held. 
o Project Challenges 

 The project architect of Humphries Poli has departed for another career opportunity.  The new 
project architect has been engaged on the project making the transition seamless. 

 
Schedule 

Work in Progress 
o Wember is tracking the detailed project schedule that was generated.  
o Initial public meetings have been completed: 

o Community Meeting: Mindbreaking on: 
 9/28/2017 – 6:00PM: Happy Leaf Kombucha, 5700 W 25th Ave, Edgewater, CO 80214 
 9/20/2017 – 11:00AM; Edgewater Rec Center, 5845 W 25th Ave, Edgewater, 80214 

o The meetings produced positive feedback and creative ideas. 
o Upcoming meetings include 

o Community Meeting: World Café on: 
 11/2/2017 – 6:00PM: Happy Leaf Kombucha, 5700 W 25th Ave, Edgewater, CO 80214 
 11/4/2017 – 11:00AM: Edgewater Rec Center: 5845 W 25th Ave, Edgewater, 80214 

 
Financial 

Budget 
o The comprehensive project estimate has been generated and is currently showing a total project cost of 

$2.6 Million to complete the project.  Steve C. and Wember have had discussions with the MEP consultants 
and are scheduling a time to discuss the IGA agreement with the City of Edgewater. 

 
 Next Steps 

o Continue with Design with a focus on the interior layout 
o Finalize shared costs with City of Edgewater 
o Complete the IGA and Lease agreement 

 

Please don’t hesitate to contact me if you have any questions. 

 
Paul D. Wember, President 
Wember 



 
 

 

To: Pam Nissler, Executive Director 
From: Paul Wembler, Gloria Overholt, Interim Director of Finance and Budget 
Date: October 19, 2017 
RE: 17-07 Edgewater Library - General Contractor at Risk (CMaR) Agreement 
 
 
History of Contract: Fransen Pittman General Contractors – 17-07 Edgewater Library - General 
Contractor at Risk (CMaR) 
 
At the October 12th Study Session the Board was presented with a staff memo detailing the process used 
to select the General Contractor for the Edgewater project.  Request for Proposals was issued and nine 
proposals were submitted.  Proposals were reviewed and interviews were held on Oct 3rd.   
 
The selection team is recommending Fransen Pittman General Contractors to assist with the pre-
construction services related to the construction of the 10,000 square foot library.   
 
Total Cost: 
17-07 Edgewater Library -  Funds are budgeted in the 2018 proposed budget in the amount of 
$2,600,000 for construction. 
 
Budget: 
Funds are budgeted in the 2017 budget in the amount of $160,000 to cover the preconstruction costs for 

the architect and the owner’s representative, and other approved costs as they occur. Full construction 

costs will be estimated by the team and completed in early 2018.   

Action Requested: 
Library Board of Trustees to authorize the Executive Director to sign a contract with the recommended 
vendor within the approved budgeted amount. 
 
 



Operational Updates 

Information Technology Department 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 
[Calibri, Size 11] 

To:  Pam Nissler, Executive Director 
From:  Pat Klein, IT Director 
Date:  October 19, 2017 
RE:  Bibliotheca Sorter Maintenance Contract 
 
 
History of Contract: Bibliotheca, LLC – Sorter Maintenance Contract 

‐ The current sorters were purchased with maintenance that extended 3 years after final 
acceptance.  The maintenance service expired in 2017 although they have continued to provide 
support. 

 
‐ In August of 2016, we asked Bibliotheca to provide a quote and service agreement for the 

sorters.  We did not receive the quote until April 2017 and only after several requests.  The cost 
was $196,000 per year and the quote did not include a service agreement.  Since April, we have 
been negotiating with Bibliotheca on a contract that would cover the services.  That contract is 
now being reviewed by the County attorney.  Negotiations on the cost have not been 
concluded, however, as the Columbine sorter has been removed, it is anticipated that the cost 
will be $160,000 per year or less. 
 

‐ This service contract would begin in 2017 and continue for approximately three years, 
depending on the schedule for replacing the Bibliotheca sorters.   

 
Total Cost: 
$160,000 x 3, total dollar value contract: $480,000 
 
Budget: 
This service agreement would fall within the IT Department under maintenance agreements: 
70060.434375 and would be budgeted in yearly amounts of $160,000 unless reduced due to sorter 
replacements.  There are funds in the 2018 proposed budget to cover the maintenance for 2018.  Funds 
will be requested in the 2019 IT budget to cover the costs in 2019. 
 
Action Requested: 
Library Staff is recommending Bibliotheca, LLC to assist with the maintenance of the sorter equipment 
purchased from them. We are asking the Library Board of Trustees to authorize the Executive Director 
to sign a contract with the recommended vendor within the approved 2017 budget, 2018 proposed 
budget and the 2019 draft budget. 
 
 
 



Operational Updates 

 

Facilities Department 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 

To:  Pam Nissler, Executive Director 
From:  Steve Chestnut, Director Facilities and Construction   
Date:  October 19, 2017 
RE:  Evergreen HVAC Refurbish Project 
 
 
History of Contract: Tolin Mechanical Services 
 
In 2016 the Board authorized in the 2017 Budget project 17‐01 Evergreen HVAC Refurbish Project.  The 
original budget authorized for the Capital Project was $135,000.  An RFP was developed and posted for 
the  work  to  be  performed  and  3  firms  responded  to  the  RFP.    The  firms  were  reviewed  and  Tolin 
Mechanical was chosen to perform the work.  Tolin is our current HVAC maintenance vendor and have 
demonstrated their ability to meet our needs.  In addition, Tolin was the low bid for the RFP. 
 
Total Cost:  $57,536 for the current scope. 
 
Budget: 
 
The Capital Project is funded under account 770024.434310 17‐01 in the amount of $135,000.  We will 
attempt to complete the project this year but that will be weather dependent and may need to be rolled 
over into next year to assure there are no freeze or comfort issues. 
 
Action Requested: 
 
The selection team is recommending Tolin Mechanical Services to complete this project. We are asking 
the Library Board of Trustees to authorize the Executive Director to sign a contract with the recommend 
vendor within the approved 2017 budgeted amount. 
 
 



Consent Agenda 
 
 
 



 

JEFFERSON COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

PROPOSED 2018 STUDY SESSIONS AND BOARD MEETINGS 
 

Study Sessions ‐ 5:30 p.m. Board Meetings ‐ 5:30 p.m.

Date  Location  Date  Location 

January 11  Administration Conference Room  January 18  Lakewood Library Meeting Room 

February 8  Administration Conference Room  February 15  Lakewood Library Meeting Room 

March 8  Administration Conference Room  March 15  Lakewood Library Meeting Room 

April 12  Administration Conference Room  April 19  Arvada Library Meeting Room 

May 10  Administration Conference Room  May 17  Columbine Library Meeting Room 

June 14  Administration Conference Room  June 21  Evergreen Library Meeting Room 

July 12  Administration Conference Room  July 19  Golden Library Meeting Room 

August 9  Administration Conference Room  August 16  Standley Lake Library Meeting Room 

September 13  Administration Conference Room  September 20  Belmar Library Meeting Room 

October 11  Administration Conference Room  October 18  Lakewood Library Meeting Room 

November 8  Administration Conference Room  November 15  Lakewood Library Meeting Room 

    December 13  Combined Study Session & Board Meeting 

Lakewood Library Meeting Room 

 

Arvada Library 

7525 West 57th Avenue, Arvada 

Belmar Library 

555 S. Allison Parkway, Lakewood 

Columbine Library 

7706 West Bowles Avenue, Littleton 

Evergreen Library 

5000 Highway 73, Evergreen 

Golden Library 

1019 10th Street, Golden 

Standley Lake 

8485 Kipling Street, Arvada 

 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


	Agenda - 10-19-17 Board Meeting
	Minutes - September 14, 2017 Study Session
	Minutes - September 21, 2017 Joint and Regular Board Meetings
	Foundation Report
	Executive Director Update
	Operational Updates - Finance & Budget Department
	Operational Updates - Public Services - Edgewater Project Update
	Operational Updates - Public Services - Edgewater Project General Contractor
	Operational Updates - Information Technology - Sorter Maintenance
	Operational Updates - Facilities - Evergreen HVAC Project
	Combined Financial Report.pdf
	Board Report Oct 19 Sept Financials
	09 Sept 2017 Tables GO
	Columbine Construction Budget - Sept 2017
	Edgewater Construction Budget -Sep 2017
	Proposed 2018 Board Meeting Schedule




